
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

September 03, 2024 at 5:30 PM  

Council Meeting Room, 101 North State Street, 
Abbeville, Louisiana 70510 

 

AGENDA 

NOTICE POSTED:  August 30, 2024 at 4:00 P.M.  

REGULAR ORDER OF BUSINESS 

             Call to Order by Mayor 
             Roll Call by Kathy Faulk  
             Prayer 
             Pledge  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
                  (To allow comments on any of the following items prior to action.) 

PERSONNEL 

1. To approve the annual 2% salary increase for the unclassified position of Administrative Assistant to 

the City Council. 

2. To approve the new classification and job description of Administrative Staff Assistant and to request 

the Municipal Employees Civil Service Board to approve same. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Mr. Kevin Ardoin with Acadiana Crime Lab to discuss new crime lab. 

MINUTES 

1. To approve the minutes from the August 20, 2024 Committee meeting and regular City Council 

meeting. 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. To enter into a public hearing to receive comments from the public regarding a proposed ordinance to 

amend Section 13-21 to add (C) to comply with recent changes to LSA RS 40:1379.3(N) which 

pertains to carrying a concealed gun without a permit. 

2. To reconvene the regular meeting from public hearing. 

3. To accept the recommendation of the Ordinance Committee from their meeting held on August 20, 

2024 to adopt an ordinance to amend Section 13-21 to add (C) to comply with recent changes to LSA 

RS 40:1379.3(N). 

4. Discussion with the property owner of 401 LeBlanc pertaining to the dilapidated/dangerous structure 

and to authorize any action if needed. 

5. Discussion pertaining to habitual nuisance offenses at 303 Charity Street and to authorize any action 

if needed. 

6. To grant a variance from the mobile home ordinance to move a 16 X 60 mobile home to 412 B K 

Stevens Drive.  According to the ordinance, the minimum mobile home size allowed is 16 X 65. 

7. To authorize the Mayor to execute the memorandum of understanding (MOU) between the City of 

Abbeville and the Federal Emergency Management Agency pertaining to the BRIC Fiscal Year 2023 

notice of funding opportunity. 

8. Discussion and possible action pertaining to the overtime for the Abbeville Police Department for the 

Louisiana Cattle Festival. 

9. Discussion and possible action pertaining to body cameras - Chief Mike Hardy. 

10. To adopt a resolution authorizing the installation of a speed hump on Graceland Avenue at its 

intersections with North Miles and North Bailey Street, east and west side of Parker Hebert Park, as 

part of the Graceland Enhancements Project. 

1



11. To approve plan change order number 1 for the Automated Weather Observing Station (AWOS) III 

P/T Replacement project which adjusts the contract time. 

12. To approve payment of partial payment estimate number 3 in the amount of $7,383.52 payable to 

Mesotech International, Inc. relative to the Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) III P/T 

Replacement Project. 

13. To adopt a Resolution of Acceptance authorizing the Mayor to execute an act of acceptance for the 

Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) III P/T Replacement project. 

14. To adopt a resolution to prepare and submit the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Capital Outlay application. 

15. To discuss the City's involvement/participation in the Abbeville Innovation Center funded by the 

Resilient Communities Infrastructure Program - Mayor Roslyn White. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. To adopt a resolution to make Nugier Street a one-way west bound street beginning west of Alphonse 

Street to the intersection of North East Street. 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND UPDATES 

1.        Engineers  

2.        Attorney 

3.        Public Works Director 

4.        Parks and Recreation Coordinator 

5.        Mayor 

6.        Police Chief 

7.        Fire Chief 

TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION 

1.        Council Members 

ADJOURN 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 

if you need special assistance, please contact 
Mayor Roslyn White's office at 337-893-8550, 
describing the assistance that is necessary. 

 
Livestream at: https://www.youtube.com/@CityofAbbevilleLA 

2

https://www.youtube.com/@CityofAbbevilleLA


   

 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF ASSISTANT 
 
NATURE OF WORK:    
The purpose of this position serves as an as needed replacement for clerical and administrative support within various offices of city 
hall.  
Depending on the assigned work area the position may involve performing all tasks in the workflow or specializing in one major task 
of the workflow 
Positions require accuracy in financial transactions 
Position requires confidentiality in tasks of sensitive nature 
The position requires professional phone and email etiquette. The employee’s conduct represents the city in an efficient, professional, 
courteous and competent manner 
The position may require overtime work during power outages or other related emergencies in which the work pace may be 
demanding. 
The employee may perform other duties as assigned. 

 
Essential Functions 
Employees of this classification must be able to perform the following: Note: This information is intended to be descriptive of the 
key responsibilities of the position. The list of essential functions below does not identify all duties performed by any single 
incumbent in this position. The absence of a specific task here does not imply the task cannot be assigned if related to the nature of 
work, a logical assignment, or a business necessity. 
 

o Performs clerical functions by answering the phone; transferring calls to appropriate departments; copying, faxing, and filing 
paperwork; handling correspondence; and greeting and directing visitors. 
 

o Performs all other duties including customer service and office maintenance by handling customers at service windows. 
 
o Opens, closes, and transfers utility services by handling the opening of new accounts; assisting customers with application 

process; collecting deposits closure of accounts; collecting outstanding balances orders. 
 
o Prepares service orders new connections/disconnections and meter replacements. 
 
o Ensures lobby is neat and clean. 

 
o Answers basic customer concerns regarding utilities, taxes, permits 

 
o Receives and works to resolve telephone and /or electronic inquiries and complaints, confirming the nature if unable to 

resolve independently or directing to the appropriate individual or department 
 

o Assist with all duties of the utility billing office, maintain utility accounts, perform regular billings 
 

o Processes financial transactions with accuracy and speed. 
 

o Ability to exercise confidentiality and discretion in processing matters of a sensitive and confidential nature. 
 

  
NECESSARY KNOWLEDGE, ABILITIES, AND SKILLS 
 

o Knowledge of general administrative support duties. Knowledge of business English and rules of grammar, spelling, and 
punctuation 

o Ability to work with the public in stressful situations while maintaining a professional, pleasant and courteous attitude 
o Ability to follow and execute oral and written instruction. 
o Knowledge of basic mathematical functions, i.e., addition and subtraction. 
o Ability to communicate effectively, verbally and in writing. 
o Establishes and maintains a working relationship with others and not limited to, elected officials all city personnel and 

federal and state representatives 
o Tasks may involve extended periods of time at a computer or workstations 
o Excellent computer skills required and knowledge of Microsoft Office Suite 

 
TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS  
Possession of a high school diploma or equivalency certificate; PLUS, full-time, paid work experience of a clerical nature indicating 
the ability to perform financial transactions and record-keeping. Possesses excellent customer service abilities. Must be a registered 
voter. 

Class Code 1208 
September 2, 2024 

3



1  

City of Abbeville 

Committee Meeting 

August 20, 2024 

 
 

The Mayor Pro-Tem and Council of the City of Abbeville met for a committee meeting on 

August 20, 2024 at 5:15 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located 

at 101 North State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Francis Touchet, Jr. Mayor 

Pro-Tem, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members Carlton Campbell, Brady Broussard, Jr. 

 Francis Touchet, Jr. and Tony Hardy 

 

Members Absent: Mayor Roslyn R. White 

 Councilwoman Terry Broussard 
 

Also Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney 

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Kelly Mire, Assistant Fire Chief 

 Charlene Beckett, Main Street Manager 

 Cristian LeJeune, Digital Media Assistant 

 Chris Gautreaux, Public works & Parks Director 

 Bryan Fisher, Code Enforcement Officer 

 Todd Vincent, Engineer 

 Steve Moosa, CPA 
     

Councilman Touchet stated that Mayor White was out of town tonight.  He stated that we are 

here for two committee meetings.  The first committee meeting is the Finance Committee to 

receive the quarterly budget report of expenses and revenue.  He asked Mr. Steve Moosa to 

present the report. 

 

Mr. Moosa presented the quarterly report.  Sales tax revenue is better than budgeted and water 

and sewer revenues are flat.  Electrical sales revenues are less than the budgeted amount but 

our hottest month is August so that should correct itself.  All departments are in line with the 

budgeted figures for payroll and other expenses. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to accept the quarterly 

budget report as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Councilman Touchet stated that the next committee is the Ordinance Committee chaired by 

Councilman Tony Hardy.  He turned the floor over to Councilman Hardy.  Councilman Hardy 

stated that the item to discuss is a proposed ordinance to amend Section 13-21 to comply with 

recent changes to LSA RS 40:1379.3(N).  He asked Bart Broussard to explain the proposed 

amendment.  Bart stated this amendment pertains to the carrying of firearms.  We are copying 

the recent change that went into effect in State law into our ordinance in order to comply with 

State law.  Everyone 18 years of age and above that are not prohibited from carrying by some 

other state or federal law, can carry.  Councilman Campbell asked about those who were 

dishonorably discharged.  Bart stated that he would research that and get back to him. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to recommend to 

the City Council at their next regular meeting scheduled for September 3, 2024 to adopt an 

ordinance to amend Section 13-21 to comply with recent changes to LSA RS 40:1379.3(N).  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Councilman Touchet declared this meeting 

adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Francis Touchet, Jr. 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor Pro-Tem 

4



City of Abbeville 

   Regular Meeting 

August 20, 2024 

 
The Mayor Pro-Tem and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on August 20, 2024 

at 5:30 PM, at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem, presiding. 

 
Members Present:    Council Members: Carlton Campbell, Brady 
    Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr.  and Tony Hardy 

 
Members Absent: Mayor Roslyn R. White 
 Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

 
Also, Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney 

 Kelly Mire, Assistant Fire Chief 

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Charlene Beckett, Main Street Manager 

 Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

 Cristian LeJeune, Digital Media Assistant 

 Bryan Fisher, Code Enforcement Officer 

 Todd Vincent, Engineer 

 Kim Touchet, Engineer 

 Eldridge Harrison, Street Construction & Improvement Foreman 

 Willie Leger, Street Maintenance Foreman 

 Tasha Hebert, T & T Sickle Cell Riders Trail Ride 

 Kristin Moore 

 Joey Songne 

        

Councilman Touchet stated that he will be running the meeting tonight because Mayor White is 

out of town.  Councilman Touchet called the meeting to order and requested a roll call.  

Councilman Touchet asked Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr.to lead the assembly in prayer and 

asked Councilman Carlton Campbell to lead those assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Councilman Touchet asked if there were any comments on any agenda item prior to action.  

There were none. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to appoint Ben 

Gaspard to the position of Police Officer with the Abbeville Police Department pending 

successful completion of all post-hire assessments.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to appoint Nohia 

Simon to the position of Police Officer with the Abbeville Police Department pending successful 

completion of all post-hire assessments.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to recommend to 

the Municipal Employees Civil Service Board to classify the range to a 17 for the positions of 

Wastewater Utility Foreman, Water Utility Foreman, Street Maintenance Foreman and Street 

Construction and Improvement Foreman.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Ms. Charlene Becket distributed the fall Sounds on the Square line up.  On October 17, 2024 the 

City will host the Downtown Revival Ribbon Cutting at 5:45 PM in front of the Courthouse.  This 

5



will be the final Sounds on the Square for the fall season so it will be relocated to the front of the 

Courthouse for that night. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve the 

minutes from the August 6, 2024 regular City Council meeting.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve the 

budget to actual report for the month of July 2024.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

704 S. St. Valerie – Ms. Christine Rice appeared to represent the property.  Bryan Fisher stated 

that he has received multiple complaints over the last year about the property.  It was up for 

condemnation but the home owner was given more time to repair the roof and it was not 

condemned.  There are multiple areas of rot.  The roof in the rear of the property was not 

repaired.  There are holes in the roof.  Ms. Rice stated that she wants to repair the property but 

her money ran out.  They started working on it at the end of last year.  Councilman Campbell 

stated that four months ago he granted a motion to give Ms. Rice 90 days to repair the property 

but nothing has been done except for a few sheets of tin that were placed.  Not enough has 

been done to repair the property.  Bart Broussard stated that the Council can vote to condemn 

the property because it is deemed in a dangerous or dilapidated condition then Bryan can decide 

what to do.  The options are up to the Code Enforcement Officer.  He can prepare a list and let 

the Council and Ms. Rice know what the options are. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to condemn the 

structure at 704 S. St. Valerie and allow the Code Enforcement Officer to come up with a list of 

options that are needed pertaining to the structure.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve a special 

event permit for T & T Sickle Cell Riders Trail Ride to be held from September 20, 2024 through 

September 22, 2024 at the Red Barn.  The permit is only needed for the trail riders to access the 

City road.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve the 

special event permit for the Bowzer Family Trail Ride and Scholarship to be held from 

November 16, 2024 through November 17, 2024 at the Red Barn.  The permit is needed for the 

trail ride to access the City road.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Ms. Kristin Moore had requested to be on the agenda because of her concerns with the 

livestream cameras in the downtown area.  She is concerned about privacy and security because 

they are 24-hour streaming.  She thought the goal was streaming just for downtown events and 

festivals.  Now if someone is having their wedding in the square then everyone can see it.  

Councilman Broussard stated that this was a project of the Abbeville Rotary Club so that the 

world could see our culture.  It does not focus on any one individual.  It is not documented or 

saved.  It is not to intrude on anyone’s privacy.  It is a large view.  Bart Broussard stated that 

downtown is a public place and in a public place you have no expectations of privacy.  You are 

not being recorded.  No signs are required.  This was studied a long time prior to 

implementation. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve the 

recommendation from the Abbeville Planning Commission to grant a variance for the landscape 

plan for the Food Truck Park to be located at 2401 Veterans Memorial Drive.  The motion 

6



carried unanimously. 

 

-10 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve the 

overlay of Nugier Street at an approximate cost of $20,000.00.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to approve making 

Nugier Street a one-way street west of Alphonse.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Chris Gautreaux began a discussion of preparing a demonstration until the end of the year to 

see how traffic would flow if South State Street from Peace Street to Lafayette Street was a one-

way street.  Traffic could head south on South State Street but could not go north.  They would 

have to turn onto Lafayette Street.  We are trying to discourage 18-wheelers coming downtown.  

It is illegal for them to be downtown according to our ordinances anyway.  They really need to 

remain on the truck route.   There are exceptions for those trucks making deliveries to our 

downtown businesses.  We will make one side of the one-way street diagonal parking and the 

other side will remain parallel parking.  They will remove three poles on the corner and reduce it 

to only one.  They will remove the traffic light and put up four-way stop signs.  The curb on the 

corner will have to be cut too.  They will receive feedback during the trial period and report that 

back to the City Council when appropriate.  Mr. Joey Songne expressed his concerns for 

increased traffic on Lafayette Street.   

 

-12 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve a 

demonstration until the end of the year creating a one-way street of South State Street from 

Peace Street to Lafayette Street.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-13 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to approve the quote 

from Solomon Corporation in the amount of $7,716.50 to repair a voltage regulator.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

-14 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to approve 

contract change order #3 relative to the Downtown Abbeville Street Improvement Project.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

-15 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to approve 

payment of partial payment estimate number 4 in the amount of $327,343.18 payable to Glenn 

Lege Construction, LLC relative to the Downtown Abbeville Street Improvement Project.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

-16 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Carlton Campbell to approve 

payment of partial payment estimate number 8 (final) in the amount of $44,984.11 payable to 

Southern Constructors for the LaFitte Drive-In Park Fishing Pier and Wharf Project.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

-17 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve 

payment of partial payment estimate number 12 in the amount of $115,619.27 payable to 

Shaw Construction for the LCDBG Sewer System Rehabilitation Project.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-18 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to authorize 

the Mayor to submit the application for the Safe Streets for All (SS4A) grant.  The motion 

7



carried unanimously. 

 

Bart Broussard stated that the mobile home at 308 S. Miles is an asset that was adjudicated to 

the City for failure to pay property taxes.  The redemption period has just ended.  We do not 

own the land.  The mobile home is not worth anything of value and it cannot be moved.  The 

property owner is willing to tear it down and absorb the cost. 

 

-19 introduced by Mr. Tony Hardy and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to authorize the 

property (land) owner of 308 S. Miles to demolish the mobile home that has been adjudicated 

to the City.  The property (land) owner will absorb the cost of the demolition.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

-20 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Tony Hardy to adopt the 

updated public records request policy.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Bart Broussard, City Attorney 

- At the Ordinance Committee meeting today prior to this meeting, Councilman Campbell 

asked if someone with a dishonorable discharge could carry a firearm.  According to his 

research, there is a federal law that prohibits someone with a dishonorable discharge from 

carrying so they would not be allow to carry according to our proposed ordinance. 

 

Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

- Introduced and commended Eldridge Harrison and Willie Leger for the work they do. 

 

Parks and Recreation Coordinator report given by Cristian LeJeune 

- Flag football ends on August 28, 2024 and QSA will begin basketball registration soon. 

 

Councilman Carlton Campbell 

- Will request that the Mayor look into getting a grant to place electric vehicle recharging 

stations in the City.  The City would have to charge the users a fee to recharge their electric 

vehicles. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- The Grand Revais is scheduled for October 11, 2025 through October 18, 2025.  He invited 

the Canadians to join us when he was there recently.  Abbeville will host the event on 

October 11, 2025. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Councilman Touchet declared this meeting 

adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Francis Touchet, Jr. 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor Pro-Tem 

 

  

 

 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



 

 

 

I Myron Harris and Evangeline Home center (Representative of Mobile Home) are requesting a 
variance of the size of the current home I’m wanting to replace my damaged mobile home. 

It is a 14x60 in size due to the city limits of Abbeville only accepts sized 14x65 and above we are 
requesting the variance to made because I Myron Harris am working with the Restore LA Program 
which is requiring me to replace my home at my current damaged home address for this size 
mobile home. All paper work is completed this is last thing needed to replace my home with the 
restore la program. 

 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

Myron Harris                                                                        Date: 

 

 

 

Dealer Representative      Date: 

 

 

 

 

 

8/28/2024

8/28/2024

48



49



50



51



52



8/27/2024

53



54



P a g e  1 | 6 
 

 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE FEDERAL 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
AND 

City of Abbeville 
 

 

I. Parties: 
 

The parties to this Agreement are the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and City of Abbeville. 

  

 
II. Purpose: 
 
The purpose of this Agreement is to provide a framework for the collaboration of FEMA and 
City of Abbeville to carry out their respective roles and responsibilities with respect to Non-
financial Direct Technical Assistance (DTA) under FEMA’s Building Resilient Infrastructure 
and Communities (BRIC) program. This Agreement sets forth the terms by which FEMA will 
provide BRIC DTA to City of Abbeville. This agreement is not intended to be legally binding.  
 
This Agreement is not an award of, or approval for, FEMA funding. Any financial assistance 
from FEMA would only be available through a separate application and award process, such 
as the process detailed in the current BRIC Fiscal Year 2023 Notice of Funding Opportunity 
(NOFO), or through another FEMA Hazard Mitigation program. This Agreement in no way 
guarantees that there will be a separate agreement for financial assistance or reimbursement 
of any kind. 

 
FEMA and City of Abbeville recognize the value of working with one another to strengthen 
the resilience of City of Abbeville by leveraging tailored technical support from FEMA, and 
other partners, so that City of Abbeville can design and implement holistic, equitable, climate 
adaptation and risk reduction solutions that advance local objectives and close capability 
gaps. 
 
The technical assistance provided by FEMA in relation to this Agreement, and the outcomes 
related to such technical assistance, will vary based on the availability and resources of 
FEMA and City of Abbeville. 
 
III. Context 
 
Millions of people living across the United States, its territories, and in Tribal lands are 
affected by natural hazards each year. Underserved communities and its citizens are often 
disproportionately impacted by such hazards and sometimes have fewer resources to ‘build 
back better’ following disasters, or otherwise increase their resilience to future risks. With the 

55

https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/notice-funding-opportunities/fy2023-nofo
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/notice-funding-opportunities/fy2023-nofo


P a g e  2 | 6 
 

escalation in the frequency and intensity of natural hazard events, the imperative to reduce 
risk and strengthen resilience has intensified, especially for people on the frontlines, who will 
experience the most adverse consequences of climate change. 
 
In recognition of these needs, FEMA established the BRIC DTA initiative to provide wide-
ranging non-financial support and technical assistance to underserved communities to 
undertake hazard mitigation solutions, including but not limited to climate risk assessments, 
community engagement, partnership building, and mitigation and climate adaptation 
planning. Support for BRIC DTA communities can be provided regardless of the timing or 
status of any grants the community may pursue or receive. 
 
 
IV. Authority: 
 
Section 203 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act 
(Stafford Act) (42 U.S.C. § 5133), Predisaster Hazard Mitigation, as amended.  
 
 
V. Definitions: 
 
As used in this Agreement: 
 
“BRIC DTA Facilitator” means a Regional FEMA staff who coordinates directly with one or 
more communities as their FEMA BRIC DTA point of contact.  

 

“Community Partners” can be organizations from within and outside the government that 
may facilitate capacity building, offer subject matter expertise, leverage resources, and/or 
enhance community engagement. Partners may include, but are not limited to, other 
government entities, nonprofits, non-governmental and community-based organizations, 
labor unions, advocacy groups, chambers of commerce and major employers or anchor 
institutions, and philanthropic organizations. 

 

“BRIC DTA Contractors” are experts working under contractual agreements (i.e., contracts, 
interagency agreements, etc.) with FEMA to support delivery of technical services to a 
community as part of the BRIC DTA initiative. 

 

“Community Engagement” is the process of working collaboratively with a diverse group of 
stakeholders to address issues affecting their well-being. 

 

 

“BRIC DTA Action Plan” describes the technical assistance activities that the BRIC program 
will provide, as developed, and agreed upon by City of Abbeville, FEMA, and any other 
relevant partners, to address the needs and gaps identified. 
 
 

VI.  Responsibilities: 

56



P a g e  3 | 6 
 

 
A. FEMA’s Responsibilities 

 
FEMA will: 
 
1. Approach BRIC DTA as a collaborative effort, recognize the inherent expertise within 

City of Abbeville, and remain open to mutual learning and growth.  
2. Recognize that the BRIC DTA initiative is community driven. FEMA acknowledges 

that there is no “one-size fits all” technical assistance model, and that the approach 
to planning and capacity building for local risk reduction and climate resilience must 
be customized, flexible, and adaptable. 

3. Assign a BRIC DTA Facilitator to work alongside City of Abbeville to understand the 
community’s vision for resilience and assess and define technical assistance needs. 

4. Consult BRIC DTA Contractors in support of the community’s vision for resilience 
and the development of specific strategies to address community technical 
assistance needs and build partnerships. 

5. Support and advise City of Abbeville in the development of a BRIC DTA Action Plan 
that identifies specific strategies and actions to build capacity and advance potential 
projects and partnerships under the BRIC program.  

6. Ensure that the BRIC DTA Action Plan, and the overall delivery of BRIC DTA, 
respects cultural norms and traditions and acknowledges past and current 
disparities. 

7. Work together with City of Abbeville and other partners to access best available 
science and knowledge about risk and climate change and help integrate into design 
considerations.  

8. Support City of Abbeville in advancing decision-making processes that include 
representatives from all affected groups. 

9. Collaborate with City of Abbeville to help identify and leverage partnerships that are 
best suited to meet local climate resilience and hazard risk reduction needs at all 
governmental levels, and with other non-profit, foundation and private partners. 

10. Foster outreach to and engagement with the City of Abbeville using tailored tools 
and approaches to establishing shared goals and projects that meet community-
wide resilience priorities across stakeholder groups consistent with the BRIC 
program.  

11. Support development of projects that leverage co-benefits and address multiple 
hazards to create additional value; assist with project identification and planning 
under the BRIC program. 

12. Partner with City of Abbeville for up to 36-months (from the effective date of this 
Agreement) to identify needs, build partnerships and deliver wide-ranging technical 
assistance based on the BRIC DTA Action Plan.  

 
B. City of Abbeville’s Responsibilities 

 
City of Abbeville will: 

 
1. Invite FEMA to work collaboratively with City of Abbeville to maximize the 

achievement of their climate resilience and hazard mitigation goals. 

57



P a g e  4 | 6 
 

2.  Engage in the development of a Community Needs Assessment that will build 
an understanding of City of Abbeville’s vision for resilience and identify gaps in 
capacity. 

3. Formulate a BRIC DTA Action Plan, with FEMA’s support, that identifies specific 
strategies to build capacity and advance community-wide mitigation or resilience 
projects under the BRIC program and expand partnerships. 

4. Foster community engagement to involve diverse stakeholders into the planning 
process and ensure plans represent the interests of the full community. 

5. Communicate progress towards the implementation of risk reduction and climate 
adaptation projects eligible under the BRIC program. 

6. Identify and build partnerships across all governmental levels, and the private and 
nonprofit sectors, to advance goals and support City of Abbeville’s long-term risk 
reduction and climate resilience endeavors. 

7. Provide feedback to FEMA so that the Agency can improve current BRIC DTA 
delivery in real-time and better understand overall gaps and barriers to accessing 
mitigation grants, as well as adapt the initiative to better meet the needs of future 
participants. 

8. Share best practices, successes, and challenges with peers and those interested in 
participating in the initiative. 

9. Prioritize committing community time and resources to the BRIC DTA process, to 
the extent possible, to ensure successful collaboration. 

10. Partner with FEMA for up to thirty-six months to identify needs, build partnerships 
and implement risk reduction and climate adaptation actions. 

 
 
VII. Other Provisions 

 
A. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to conflict with current law or regulation or 

the directives of FEMA or City of Abbeville. If a term of this Agreement is 
inconsistent with such authority, then that term shall be invalid, but the remaining 
terms and conditions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

B. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to restrict the authority of either party to act as 
provided by statute or regulation. 

C. Any information shared under this Agreement will comply with the Privacy Act, and to 
the extent required and allowable, the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), and any 
other applicable statute, regulation, or Executive Order.  

D. This Agreement is between FEMA and City of Abbeville. It does not confer or create 
any right, benefit, or trust responsibility, substantive or procedural, enforceable at 
law or in equity, onto any third person or party (public or private) against the United 
States, its agencies, its officers or employees, or any person; or against City of 
Abbeville its officers or employees, or any other person. 

E. This Agreement creates neither a partnership nor a joint venture, and neither party 
has the authority to bind the other. This Agreement is not intended to be enforceable 
in any court of law or dispute resolution forum. 

F. The parties will use or display each other’s name, emblem, or trademarks only in 
the case of particular projects and only with the prior written consent of the other 

58



P a g e  5 | 6 
 

party. The Department of Homeland Security (DHS) seal is protected by 18 U.S.C. 
§§ 506, 701, and 1017, among other laws, and use of the seal is controlled by the 
DHS Office of Public Affairs through DHS Management Directive No. 123-06. 
Written permission is required to use the DHS Seal. Any party to this agreement 
that is not a Federal entity may only use an official DHS seal or logo upon written 
permission from DHS.  

G. The parties to this Agreement agree to be responsible for the negligent or wrongful 
acts or omissions of their respective employees arising under this Agreement. The 
parties agree -- subject to any limitations imposed by law, rule, or regulation -- to 
cooperate in good faith to resolve any claims promptly and, whenever appropriate, 
without litigation. For all claims or suits arising under this Agreement, each party’s 
designated legal representatives will, within seven (7) calendar days of receipt, 
provide the other’s designated legal representatives copies of any documents 
memorializing such claims. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a 
waiver of any sovereign immunity of the United States. The Federal Tort Claims, 28 
U.S.C. §§ 1346(b) and 2671–80 Act provides the exclusive monetary damages 
remedy for allegedly wrongful or negligent acts or omissions by federal employees 
within the scope of their employment.  

H. The parties to this Agreement shall carry out its responsibilities in an equitable and 
impartial manner free from discrimination in accordance with Section 308 of the 
Stafford Act as applicable. 

I. This Agreement is not a fiscal or funds obligation document. Any services, 
equipment or personnel provided to FEMA to accomplish the goals anticipated 
under this agreement are done so without expectation of reimbursement or the 
payment of fees related to the provision of such services, equipment, or personnel, 
unless otherwise agreed. Any specific work or activity that involves the transfer of 
funds, services, or property among the parties will require execution of a separate 
agreement and will be contingent upon the availability of appropriated funds. Such 
activities must be independently authorized by appropriate statutory or other legal 
authority. This Agreement does not provide such authority. 

J. This Agreement, upon execution, contains the entire agreement of the parties and 
supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, both written and oral, 
between the parties with respect to the subject matter. 

 
  

59



P a g e  6 | 6 
 

IV. Effective Date: 
The terms of this Agreement will become effective upon the signature of both parties. 

 
V. Modification: 

This Agreement may be modified upon the mutual, written consent of the parties. 
 

VI. Termination: 
The terms of this Agreement, as modified with the consent of both parties, will remain in 
effect until the completion of the community BRIC DTA Action Plan, and not to exceed 
thirty-six months past the signing of this Agreement. Either party may terminate this 
Agreement upon 10 days’ written notice to the other party. 

 

Approved by: 

 

 

 

 

Name and position of the official signing for City of Abbeville 

 

 

Date 

 

 

 

__________ 

Name and position of the official signing for FEMA Region 

 

 

Date 

 

 

 

__________ 

Name and position of the official signing for FEMA Headquarters 

 

 

Date 

60



61



62



63



64



65



 The following was offered by                                                                             , seconded 

by                                                                                      , and duly resolved: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

FROM THE STATE OF LOUISIANA 

UNDER THE FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 

CAPITAL OUTLAY PROGRAM 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the State of Louisiana has announced that applications are being accepted for 

the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Capital Outlay Program; and 

 WHEREAS, the Capital Outlay Program offers grants to eligible municipalities and 

parishes for a wide range of projects to improve public health, public safety, living conditions and 

for economic development purposes; and 

 WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and proper for the City to submit application(s) to the 

State of Louisiana Capital Outlay Program; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Abbeville hereby commits to a local match of twenty-five percent 

(25%) of the total project cost and any cost overrun. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Abbeville 

that Sellers & Associates is hereby authorized to submit the necessary documents for the Capital 

Outlay Program on behalf of the City of Abbeville and that the Honorable Roslyn White, Mayor, 

is hereby authorized to sign all documents related to the 2025-2026 Capital Outlay Program, 

including any Cooperative Endeavor Agreements, reports, studies, plans, certifications, 

assurances, contracts, change orders, requests for information or disbursements, close-out 

documents, and any other documents required in connection with this Capital Outlay Program. 

 THEREUPON, the above resolution was approved. 

****************************************************************************** 

 

C E R T I F I CA T E 

 

 I, Kathy Faulk, Clerk of the City of Abbeville, do hereby certify that the above is a true 

and exact copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Abbeville on  

                                            , 2024, at which time a quorum was present and voting. 

 

 

 

 

KATHY FAULK 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

N:\DATA\COP 2025-2026 Application\COP Resolution.wpd 

66



RESOLUTION NO.:  _________ 
  

A RESOLUTION DECLARING NUGIER STREET TO BE A ONE 

WAY STREET FROM ALPHONSE WESTBOUND TO NORTH 

EAST STREET 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Abbeville acknowledges the importance of traffic commands in 

regards to keeping streets safe that are operated by vehicles. 

 WHEREAS, the City Council does hereby determine that it is in the best interest of the 

City, as well as the safety of all residents, to declare Nugier Street to be a one way street from 

Alphonse westbound to North East Street. 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Abbeville (the “Governing 

Authority”), acting as the governing authority of the City of Abbeville, State of Louisiana, 

authorizes the City to maintain Nugier Street as a one way street from Alphonse westbound to North 

East Street.  

 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption by the City of Abbeville City Council and approved by the Mayor. 

 

This resolution having been submitted to vote, the vote thereon was a follows: 

 Yeas  _________ 

 

 Nays  _________  

 

 Absent:  _________ 

 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this _____ day of  _______________, 2024. 

              

Hon. Roslyn R. White, Mayor    Mr. Carlton Campbell 

       Councilman at Large 

 

              

Mr. Tony Hardy     Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. 

Councilman District A     Mayor Pro-Tem/Councilman District B 

 

              

Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr.    Ms. Terry Y. Broussard 

Councilman District C     Councilwoman District D 

 

C E R T I F I C A T E 

 

 I Kathleen S. Faulk, the duly qualified and appointed Clerk of the City of Abbeville, State of 

Louisiana, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution was duly approved at the regular 

meeting of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Abbeville held on __________________, 2024. 

 THUS DONE AND SIGNED in Abbeville, Louisiana, on this ______ day of 

__________________________, 2024.         

       Kathleen S. Faulk, City Secretary/Treasurer 

67


	Top
	1.	Lynn 2%
	2.	Administrative staff assistant
	Office Assitant (Floater )

	1.	Kevin Ardoin-Crime lab
	1.	minutes
	August 20, 2024 Committee Meeting
	August 20, 2024 regular meeting

	1.	Hearing for ordinance
	Ordinance to amend Section 13-21_0001

	2.	Reconvene
	3.	Adopt ordinance
	4.	401 LeBlanc
	401 Leblanc st_0001

	5.	303 Charity
	303 Charity_0001

	6.	Mobile home variance-412 B K Stevens Drive
	Variance Letter 08-28-24
	Restore Louisiana Notice to Proceed 08-28-24
	Data Sheet 08-29-24
	Elevation Certificate 08-29-24
	Mobile Home Building Permit Application 08-29-24
	Restore Louisiana Award Letter 08-28-24

	7.	MOU-BRIC
	FY23 BRIC DTA MOU_City of Abbeville

	8.	Cattle Festival overtime
	9.	Body cameras
	10.	Graceland speed hump
	11.	AWOS-CO 1
	9559-02 Plan Change (Change Order) #1_Partial Execution

	12.	AWOS PPE 3
	9559-02 PPE#3 w PL

	13.	Act of Acceptance AWOS
	9559-02 ROA with PL

	14.	FY 2025-2026 Capital Outlay application
	Abbeville Resolution

	15.	Resilient Communities Infrastructure program
	1.	Nugier Street
	Resolution - Nugier St_

	Bottom

